
 

Dinas a Sir Abertawe 
 
Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod 
 
Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod 

 

Pwyllgor Cyflawni Corfforaethol Diogelu Pobl a 
Threchu Tlodi 

 

Lleoliad: 
 

Cyfarfod Aml-Leoliad  - Ystafell Gloucester, Neuadd y Ddinas / MS 
Teams 
 

Dyddiad: 
 

Dydd Llun, 23 Ionawr 2023 

Amser: 
 

4.00 pm 

Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd  Ceri Evans 
 

 

Aelodaeth: 
Cynghorwyr: J P Curtice, R Fogarty, Y V Jardine, A J Jeffery, H Lawson, 
A J O'Connor, J E Pritchard a/ac L V Walton 
 
Gwylio ar-lein: http://bit.ly/3GXw6rU 
 

 

Agenda 
Rhif y Dudalen. 

1   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
 
2   Derbyn datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.  

 www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau 
 

 

3   Cofnodion: 1 - 2 
 Cymeradwyo a llofnodi, fel cofnod cywir, gofnodion y cyfarfod 

blaenorol. 
 

 
4   Adroddiad ar Ddatblygu Canllaw Arfer Gorau Cydlynu Ardaloedd 

Lleol. 
3 - 29 

 
5   Cynllun Gwaith 2022-2023. 30 
 

Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Llun, 27 Chwefror 2023 am 4.00 pm 

 
 
Huw Evans 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Dydd Mawrth, 17 Ionawr 2023 

Cyswllt: Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - (01792) 636923 
 

http://bit.ly/3GXw6rU
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau


 
 

 

City and County of Swansea 
 

Minutes of the Safeguarding People & Tackling 
Poverty Corporate Delivery Committee 

 
Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS 

Teams  

Monday, 28 November 2022 at 4.00 pm 

 
Present: Councillor C R Evans (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s) 
J P Curtice R Fogarty Y V Jardine 
H Lawson J E Pritchard L V Walton 
 
Officer(s)  
Lee Cambule Tackling Poverty Service Manager 
Julie Davies Head of Child & Family Services 
Amy Hawkins Head of Adult Services & Tackling Poverty 
Simon Jones Social Services Strategy and Performance Improvement 

Officer 
Allison Lowe Democratic Services Officer 
Anthony Richards Poverty and Prevention Strategy and Development 

Manager 
 
Also present  
 Councillor H Gwilliam Cabinet Member for Community (Support) 
Julia Manser Swansea Council for Voluntary Services (SCVS) 
 
Apologies for Absence 
Councillor(s): A J Jeffery, A Pugh 

 

 
24 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests. 

 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City & County of Swansea, 
the following interests were declared: 
 
Councillor H Lawson declared a personal interest in Minute 26 “Swansea Council 
Volunteering Strategy Development” 
 

25 Minutes: 
 
Resolved that the Minutes of the Safeguarding People & Tackling Poverty Corporate 
Delivery Committee held on 24 October be approved and signed as a correct record. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Safeguarding People & Tackling Poverty Corporate Delivery Committee 
(28.11.2022) Cont’d 

 

26 Swansea Council Volunteering Strategy Development. 
 
Anthony Richards, Poverty and Prevention Strategy Development Manager 
supported by Julia Manser, Swansea Council for Voluntary Services (SCVS) 
provided a “For information” report on the development of Swansea Council’s 
Volunteering Strategy. 
 
The report included a good practice Volunteer Policy outlined at Appendix A for 
consideration. 
 
Comments from the Committee included: 
 

 Policy should outline that Volunteers would not replace any paid role but work 
alongside; 

 Ensure consistency across departments, including expenses; 

 Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) to be updated as the process progresses; 

 Hyperlink to the “TUC Charter for Strengthening Relations between Paid Staff 
and Volunteers” be included in the draft policy; 

 
Once the draft policy had been approved by the Committee it would need to 
progress to either Corporate Management Team or to Cabinet/Council. In addition, 
engagement with Welsh Government would take place and a toolkit devised.  
Communication across the Council would follow to ensure all departments adhered 
to the new Policy. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers for the update and looked forward to receiving the 
draft policy in the New Year. 
 

27 Work Plan 2022-2023. 
 
The Chair presented the Work Plan for 2022-2023. 
 
Resolved that the Work Plan be noted subject to the following additions: 
 
23 January 2022: 

 A new Local Area Coordination Best Practice Policy / Guide including 
Recruitment 

 Creating a Workforce to Deliver More Care Services directly (Support and 
development of a workforce and well-being Strategy and plan for the 
Directorate) 

 
27 February 2022: 

 Swansea Council Volunteering Strategy Draft Policy 

 Corporate Debt Policy 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.29 pm 
 

Chair 

Page 2



 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Well-Being 
 

Safeguarding People and Tackling Poverty Corporate Delivery 
Committee – 23 January 2023 

 

Report on the Development of Local Area 
Coordination Best Practice Guide 

 
Purpose: For the Safeguarding People and Tackling Poverty 

Corporate Development Committee to consider the 
Swansea Council’s draft best practice guidance document 
relating to Local Area Coordination (LAC) in Swansea, to 
give their views and make recommendations to the Cabinet 
Member as necessary. 
 

Report Authors: Lee Cambule, Tackling Poverty Service Manager 
Jon Franklin, Local Area Coordination Implementation 
Manager 
  

Legal Officer: Debbie Smith 
 

Finance Officer: Chris Davies 

Access to Services: Rhian Millar 

For Information  

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The draft Local Area Coordination Best Practice Guide which sets out 

the best practice standards for the Local Area Coordination service has 
been produced and is provided as Appendix A for the consideration of 
the Committee. 

 
1.2 The Council’s commitment to Local Area Coordination is to implement a 

service based on internationally recognised best practice 
 
2. Context  
 
2.1 Local Area Coordination plays an important role in supporting the 

people of Swansea to live in welcoming communities that provide 
friendship, mutual support, equity and opportunities for everyone. 
This vision is being achieved through a collaborative, strengths-based 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



approach involving not just many departments of the Council but our 
partners, stakeholders, service providers, community groups and 
volunteers. 

 
2.2 The model of Local Area Coordination is an internationally recognised 

service model that originated in Australia in 1988. Our local 
implementation of this service is part of the national Local Area 
Coordination Network, and Swansea is one of the pioneering areas for 
establishing a best practice model of support. Having been on this 
journey in Swansea since 2015, we have reached a point in our journey 
where we have achieved full coverage across Swansea. 

 
2.3 Due to the expansion of Local Area Coordination in all communities 

across Swansea, it is timely to define, publish and promote a clear set 
of guidelines for the best practice standard of Local Area Coordination. 
This is important because: 

 

 With a wide range of stakeholders involved, many individuals may 
have different perspectives and expectations of what the service is 
and does; 

 There is a need to combine standard practices and flexibility due 
to variations in local needs; 

 The role of Local Area Coordinators is unique and it is important to 
make clear their bespoke approach.  

 A collaborative approach also requires our partners and 
supporters to understand their role in the service; 

 Promotion of the service – which is essential to achieving our 
vision – must be supported by the foundations of clear best 
practice; 

 Clear best practice standards supports recruitment, onboarding, 
development and retention of Local Area Coordinators. 

 
2.4 Our proposal is to co-produce a Best Practice Guide document that 

defines our best practice guidelines for the Local Area Coordination 
service. This will be supported by a set of tasks to launch, promote and 
communicate these guidelines with our partners and stakeholders. 

 
2.5 Recommendations from the Corporate Development Committee will 

contribute to the further development of the Best Practice Guide.  
 
3 Content  
 
3.1 The draft Best Practice Guide is presented includes: 
 

 Definition of Local Area Coordination and the role of Local Area 
Coordinators; 

 Definition of the principles and approach underpinning Local Area 
Coordination; 

 How Local Area Coordination is applied in Swansea; 

 More about how Local Area Coordinators work in communities, in 
partnerships and in walking alongside individuals; 

Page 4



 Examples of the positive outcomes achieved and an overview of 
how Stories are important to this approach; 

 Contact information and quotes from people who have been 
supported by our Local Area Coordinators. 

 
3.2 The content is currently in draft form and is under review to identify and 

incorporate comments from key stakeholders including Councillors, 
citizens and colleagues. The document will also be subject to review in 
terms of accessibility and format to make this document easy to read 
and understand. 

 
3.3 The audience for the guide are stakeholders of this service including 

Council Members, professionals (such as General Practitioners, Social 
Workers and  Social Prescribers) other partners and members of our 
communities in Swansea. 

 
4. Next Steps  
 
4.1 Finalise draft document incorporating comments from stakeholders. 
 
4.2 Submit final draft for approval through corporate governance. 
 
4.3 Launch the Local Area Coordination Best Practice Guide. 
 
5. Integrated Assessment Implications 
 
5.1 The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty 

and the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must 
in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
and other conduct prohibited by the Acts. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-
economic disadvantage 

 Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language 

 Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English. 

 Ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own 
needs. 

 
5.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that 

public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development. 
Sustainable development means the process of improving the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by 
taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, 
aimed at achieving the ‘well-being goals’. 

Page 5



 
5.3 Our Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) process ensures we have paid 

due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues and 
priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community cohesion, 
the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and 
Welsh language.  

 
5.4 An Integrated Impact Screening has been completed for this report with 

no further assessment required (See Appendix C). This is an IIA 
Screening for the ‘For Information’ Report to the Safeguarding People 
and Tackling Poverty Corporate Delivery Committee regarding on the 
findings of the Auditor General for Wales review of tackling poverty in 
Wales and its recommendations for action by local authorities.  A full IIA 
will be carried out as part of the development process for the Tackling 
Poverty Strategy in due course. 

 
6. Legal implications  
 
6.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 
 
7. Finance Implications 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Appendices:  
Appendix A – Draft Local Area Co-ordination Best Practice Guide 
Appendix B – Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form 

Page 6



Local Area Coordination recognises the power of taking
time to get to know people, families and the wonderful
connections, resources and opportunities within local
communities and is a key component in the successful
delivery of the Social Services and Well-Being Act, and
the Ageing Well Plan.ௗௗ

The Local Area Coordination Vision is that:

Swansea Local Area Coordination - Best Practice Guide

‘Develop partnerships with individuals and families as they
build and pursue their goals and dreams for a good life and
with local communities to strengthen their capacity to
include all people including those at risk of exclusion, as
valued citizens.’࣯

‘All people live in welcoming
communities that provide
friendship, mutual support,
equity and opportunities for
everyone’.

This powerful vision is the ambition for an
international movement to develop a long term,
evidence-based, capacity-building approach for
working alongside people of all ages and
backgrounds in our communities. We work
towards this vision through the LAC Charter:ௗ

What Is Local Area Coordination?

1

P
age 7

Allison.Lowe�
FreeText
Appendix A�



ௗ

ௗ

• Make new connections and friends;ௗ
• Get involved in groups and activities;ௗ
• Overcome personal challenges;ௗ

• Get their voices heard by people in power and get involved 
in improving public services;ௗ

• Make contributions to their communities;ௗ
• Think about what their good life looks like.ௗ

Local Area Coordinators are there for the whole community.
They walk alongside individuals and the community to help
people to:

LAC Ten Principles

What Does a Local Area Coordinator Do?

Local Area Coordinators are guided by ten principles
when walking alongside people. They can take
introductions (rather than referrals, as an introduction
best describes the manner of the relationship) from
other Health & Social Care professionals, community
members or direct from the person themselves

2

P
age 8



.

This means that instead of
assessing or signposting people
into services, they can:ௗ

It is a connected, integrated, preventative and strength-based role – whole person,
whole family, whole community, whole system - which is embedded in and connected
with community, whilst also being connected with formal services providing a valuable
bridge between community and Local Authority.ௗ

Walking alongside individuals in this
way enables them to stay stronger,
confident and interdependent for
longer, delaying – or even
removing – their need for formal
service support.

Each Coordinator works in a defined community of around
10,000-12,000. They approach,or are introduced to people who
want to make changes to their lives, or who may be isolated, or
at risk of needing formal services. Coordinators support people
to build their own their vision for a good life, finding pragmatic
and creative solutions, drawing on individual’s strengths, and
family and community resources, before considering
commissioned or statutory services.

• Invest enough time in understanding what
a good life looks like to the person or
family, and how they could get there;ௗ

• Help people to build their own capacity
and connections, so that they can stay
strong and independent;ௗ

• Build new community connections or
capacity where they don’t exist.ௗௗ

How Does It Work?

3

P
age 9



In Swansea, Local Area Co-ordination started with 3
Coordinators in 2015. Swansea is one of 12 areas
across England and Wales that has been developing
and implementing this approach as part of the national
Local Area Co-ordination Network www.lacnetwork.org

Over time, the approach in Swansea has grown to the
point where we now have full coverage of all areas
across the county. There is a dedicated Coordinator
covering each of the twenty-three areas based on
population size (as opposed to ward areas).

4

Local Area Coordination in Swansea

A list of all the Local Area Coordination
areas in Swansea is included in Annex A for
information and all their contact details can
be found on the Council website

P
age 10



Part of the Community

Coordinators are place-based, working in their community rather than
from an office and focussing on people and possibilities rather than
issues and needs. As part of their role they identify what we call
‘bumping spaces’ where they can get to know and can become
known by the community. This could be the community centre or
library, if there is one, but can equally be a café, shop or social venue.
They will learn about the groups that meet in their area and will
attend occasionally, especially if they are attending with someone
they are walking alongside. They are not community development
workers; their Coordination is in the area rather than of the area.

They make connection with key community members, such as elected
Members, faith leaders, local businesses and other community
professionals but will also get to know the many individuals who are
active in the community, often in informal and low profile ways.

Often, Coordinators are asked to provide lists of
groups or assets in a community. While having the
local knowledge is vital and can help other
colleagues, a published list is not ideal as it easily
gets out of date and is not a suitable location for
the many informal sources of support to be
advertised. Because the Coordinator builds
relationships with local people they become a
knowledgeable and known community member.
Nothing is better for local knowledge than these
reciprocal and valuable connections.

Building relationships is key to the role and is
the way the Coordinator gets to find out about
the resources and the many great things that
are happening in the community.

5

P
age 11



Working In Partnership

• Ward Councillors, Town & Community Councilsௗ
• Colleagues – inc. Social Services, Education, Housing & Regeneration;ௗ
• Swansea Council for Voluntary Services
• Registered Social Landlords – including Coastal, Pobl and Caredigௗ
• Swansea Bay University Health Board – including local GP Cluster Groups 

and Community Mental Health Teamௗ
• Social Prescribersௗ
• South Wales Police – including local Police Community Support Officers 
• Mid and West Wales Fire Service Community Safetyௗ
• Citizens Advice
• Many Third Sector groups – inc charities, food banks and community groups
• Community-based enterprisesௗ
• Education and learning partners
• National and Welsh Government forums

Partnership working is critical to the success of Local Area
Coordination, as each Coordinator develops relationships with
service providers and stakeholders that work in their
communities. This includes relationships with organisations and
groups such as:
ௗ
This partnership working also extends to include informal
groups and individuals many of whom operate with low
profiles. This could include the local shopkeeper who has lived
in the area for many years and has vital local knowledge. It
could also include individuals who are active in supporting
neighbours in informal ways. By building relationships with
these, the Coordinator gains local knowledge and connection
which are important tools in their toolbox when they are
walking alongside a person.

Strategic partnerships are also vital to the development and
effectiveness of LAC.
“All the Swansea based housing associations invest both
money and time, along with other statutory and voluntary
groups and have both championed Local Area Coordination
and facilitated good working relationships with Coordinators.
Academic input too from Swansea University is
invaluable.” LAC blog

6

P
age 12



Local Area Coordinators are alongsiders, in that they
take time to get to know people and walk alongside
them whilst they identify, explore and work towards
their version of a good life. Working with individuals in
this way is the main part of the role.

Walking AlongsideௗPeople & Families

For anyone in the community for information, 
connections, or short-term support.

Coordinators are primarily focussed on
making themselves available to individuals
in their area in two ways;
ௗௗ

For longer term support alongside people in 
the community who may be facing more 
complex and enduring life issues.

1

2

Working together they will look at any challenges the person
is facing and how best they can overcome them or learn to
live with them. They will take real action to work towards the
goals the person has set for themselves and help them
access the information they may need. The Local Area
Coordinator will never take the lead and will never dictate
what should happen. The person has natural authority and,
as the expert in their own life, has choice and control.  
 
The Local Area Coordination principles underpin everything
a Coordinator does. By following these principles, which are
highlighted here, the Coordinator will have a strengths-
based conversation with the person, focusing on what they
can do, what they are good at, what they are interested in
and what their good life looks like. They will focus
on relationships, community and contribution. They will
work together and talk about citizenship, with all
its opportunities and responsibilities, as well as lifelong
learning, for which everyone has capacity.

Local Area Coordination recognises the complimentary
nature of services, and a Coordinator will be help someone if
they are at the point that they need to access a service,
helping them access the right service, at the right time.

7

P
age 13



How Someone Can be Introduced to Their Local Area Coordinator

Meet in Their 
Community

Coordinators are 
present and visible, 
and anyone can find 
them at a variety of 

places in their 
community.

From Family or 
Friends

With consent, a 
Coordinator can 
be introduced to 

someone by 
family, friends or 

neighbours.

From a Professional
With consent, a 

Coordinator can be 
introduced to someone 
by a professional they 

know ( GP, Social 
Worker, Housing Officer, 

Librarian, Councillor, 
etc.)

How a Local Area Coordinator Can be Contacted

Social Media
Each Coordinator

has a Facebook page 
for their area and can 
be messaged there.

Email
You can email directly 

or a central email 
inbox can be used:
Local.AreaCoordination@

swansea.gov.uk

Phone
They can be contacted 

by phone call, Text 
message or WhatsApp 

message.

In Person
Local Area Coordinators are based in your community and will regularly visit
community venues so you can speak with them when they are in the area.

What to be Aware of When Introducing Someone to a 
Local Area Coordinator

Good Life
Has the 
person 

previously 
explored 

their 
version of 

a good 
life?

Consent
Has the 

person given 
consent to 

be 
introduced 

to their Local 
Area 

Coordinator?

Understanding

Do they 
understand 
what Local 

Area 
Coordination 

is?

What to Expect When Meeting Your Local Area Coordinator

Taking Time
Your Coordinator will take 
time to get to know you; 

and build a trusting 
relationship

Good Life
They will talk to you 

about what's 
important to you and 

what you’d like to 
achieve

What's Strong
They will be positive and 

help you look at what your 
strengths are, rather than 
on deficits and what you 

can't do.

Challenges
Are there challenges that you need to overcome? Your Coordinator will help you look for 

ways to do this.

Safety 
Concerns
Is there 

anything the 
Local Area 

Coordinator 
needs to 
know to 

keep people 
safe?

Shared Agreement
You will both complete a shared agreement which sets out what you are both responsible 

for, what your aims are and what you have both agreed.

8

P
age 14



The Nature of the Local Area Coordination Relationship  

Instead of asking:

“What services and money
do people need?”

The Coordinator takes time to get to know the person, exploring their strengths, formal 
and informal network, helping them to access information when required and helping 
them advocate for themselves. Taking action and connecting them with others in their 
community and finding local solutions to challenges all comes before considering their 
need for formal services.

It all starts with building a trusting relationship, taking time to listen, getting to know, 
and finding out what is important:
good, purposeful conversations: purposely unprescribed

Local Area Coordination is asking:

“What makes a good life for each person 
and what are the different ways we can get 

there?”

9

P
age 15



The Nature of the Local Area Coordination Relationship 

1. We start with exploring and discovering someone’s dreams and aspirations 
now and in the future.

2. Understand, respect, and acknowledge their journey, gifts, skills, 
experiences and needs.

3. Help them to access accurate, relevant, and timely information.

4. Support people to build and maintain a valued, mutually supportive    
relationships – family, friends, shared interests, shared experience.

5. Help people to have a voice and be heard.

6. Assist and encourage people to take practical action to do what they want or 
need to do in life.

7. Nurture more welcoming, inclusive supportive and better resourced 
communities. Be part of - and actively contribute to - community life.

8. Help people to access, navigate, choose, and control services and resources 
they need.

10

P
age 16



Examples of Positive Outcomes Achieved Through 
Following the Principles of Local Area Coordination

11

Eric is 83 years old and struggles with multi health conditions
on a daily basis. When introduced to Dom, the Local Area
Coordinator, his health was limiting his ability to stay
independent and this was causing Eric some distress. Dom
was able to connect him up with a number of individuals in
his community who were able to offer practical support in
the short term, until Eric felt stronger again. As things started
to get better for Eric, Dom ensured he had access to the right
aide so that he could start to regain his independence again.
Eric now enjoys a much fuller life, is enjoying his hobbies, and
is able to look after himself again.

Dan, the Local Area Coordinator, was initially introduced to Mervyn’s wife
Carys, who was living with dementia. It became evident that Carys had a
great team of professionals around her offering her support. However,
Mervyn was increasingly struggling as Carys’ full time carer. With so many
people involved in Carys’ care, and the focus being on his wife, Mervyn had
felt forgotten and a ‘ghost in his own home’. Dan was able to walk alongside
Mervyn, helped him access information that was important for him to
better understand the things that were happening, and gave him choice and
control again. Dan was also able to help coordinate the many professionals
entering his home and supported Mervyn to have his own voice heard.

Georgia misses the sea air. She also misses
walking and chatting with other people. She
has been increasingly isolated due to Covid,
her failing eye sight and other health concerns.
But, together with Seren, her Local Area
Coordinator, she builds her confidence to the
point of joining a walking group in her
community. And once again, she is active,
connected and enjoying her life. “Seren is
lovely - it’s made such a difference to my life, I
used to go months without going out at all and
now I go out weekly and it’s really improved
my life.”

Marvin is a young man who has experienced lots of
difficult times in his life. After moving to a new town he
started to feel lonely, not knowing anyone and spent
much of his time on his own. Following the death of his
foster mother Marvin’s situation quickly got worse. He
felt the only support and person he could trust had
now gone. Marvin was introduced to Anne, the Local
Area Coordinator at a time when he was experiencing
frequent low moods and felt totally isolated. While
Anne walked alongside him, Marvin was able to start to
make some changes. Anne introduced him to the Roots
Foundation who support care leavers and Marvin was
able to start thinking about the future again. Roots
offered him support with his finances and a safe place
he could start to connect with others.

P
age 17



Stories
Why do we produce stories?
• Reflection for the person we are walking

alongside: How far have you come? What have
you achieved? Where are the gaps and challenges
for you?

• Data capture: qualitative as well as quantitative.
• For Self-reflection and for Peer–Peer sessions.
• To ensure adherence to Local Area Coordination

principles and lessen practice drift.
• For sharing and learning across the team.
• To promote the work we do.

Each Local Area Coordinator, together with the person, will
write an account of their involvement in the life of
someone and the changes the person has been able to
make as a result. The story includes a distance-travelled
tool as below, which illustrates the two sets of scores each
person has assigned themselves and notes the ‘journey’
between each score. The larger the number the more
significant the change for that person in that area of their
lives.

Hugh & Janet's storyCheck out 

These stories are powerful testimonials to the
impact of the walking alongside relationship with
the Coordinator. This qualitative evidence is
powerful and shows the many positive outcomes,
not only for the person themselves but also for
those connected to them and often their
community. Stories are shared regularly and all the
stories that have been shared are filed on the Staff
Intranet here: 
Local Area Coordination Stories - Staff
portal (swansea.gov.uk)

12

Gary's Art For veterans story

P
age 18



Best Practice Illustration 1 
The Car Analogy – The Local Area Coordinator is Never in the Driving Seat

Imagine you are going on a car journey, taking a route that is
totally unfamiliar. You are the driver and are nervous about this.
You have an idea of where you need to be but feel unsure about
how you will get there alone.

I (The Local Area Coordinator) am joining
you on this journey, on hand in the
passenger seat to talk through any
challenges you experience along the way
and to encourage you. This journey is not
straightforward – you may come across
diversions, traffic jams, one way streets, all
of which may affect the route you take. It
may be stressful but I am sat alongside you
offering suggestions on different routes you
may want to consider, pointing out the good
things and celebrating with you how far you
have come, and chatting through concerns
you may have, but you are always in control
of the speed and direction of your journey

After weeks of repeating that journey, you begin to get more confident at handling
any challenges you come across along the way. You may not be quite ready to take
the journey alone, but are happy for me to move into the back seat while someone
else you met on the journey takes my place. I am still on hand to chat through route
options with you, but not needing to be sat beside you as your confidence is growing.

Eventually, you will have become confident with the
route. You may still have to take diversions
occasionally, but you are confident that you will
reach your destination and feel able to tackle any
challenges you meet along the way. At this point,
you will probably feel you no longer need me to
come along for the ride - me singing away in the
back seat is something you can now do without.
This is where I get out, as your focus on where you
want to be and how you are going to get there is
now very clear and there are others around you. I
am always available to get back in the car in the
future if you need me to, but never in the driving
seat!

2
4

13

31

P
age 19



“Safe waiting is a stance, like a professional position,
that we can take when supporting someone. It's a
commitment that we make with that person to stick
with them while life unfolds, whatever pace it wants to
go at. And….that's waiting. The safe element of it is
that we, as professionals, safeguard people. Although
you're allowing life to unfold for this person, you are
taking into consideration their safety and dignity and
assessing that risk as well”

This concept was produced by the LAC team in Derby, and is a useful 
video presentation of some of the elements of the relationship that a 
Local Area Coordinator builds when they are alongside someone.

Best Practice Illustration 2
Safe Waiting

Watch the Safe waiting video on YouTube

14

P
age 20



Using this asset-based approach to community develop
results in community members becoming active citizens
as they participant in the process of change. They are not
a recipient of a service or an outcome from a
development programme, but are individuals and families
living in communities making a difference for themselves.

While this approach to community development can
often take longer, it also promises a strategy for longer
term, sustainable changes that last.

Working with Communities 

Whilst their priority is to work with individuals, Local Area Coordinators also work with communities where they adopt an asset-
based approach. This approach strengthens communities by identifying and encouraging the skills, resources, experience,
knowledge, connections, and passions that already exist within them. It acknowledges ‘what’s strong’ instead of ‘what’s wrong.

Coordinators notice and celebrate the assets that
already exist in communities and looks for opportunity
to mobilise them, (making the invisible, visible). They
support individuals to make connections to others with
the same skills and passions and focus on community
capacity building.

15

P
age 21



Working with Communities 

Local Area Coordinators don’t
organise or run community
groups or take a lead in
community development but
play a catalysing role and focus
on enabling communities to drive
their own developments.

As the Coordinator connects
people together, local groups
benefit from the contribution of
skills, gifts and abilities of the
people the Coordinator walks
alongside, building community,
as well as individual, capacity.

16

P
age 22



17

P
age 23



“I am in position where I now have the 
freedom of choice on my life for the 
first time since I was 15 years old”

“Having a 
Local Area 
Coordinator 
by my side 
has really 
made a 
difference to 
me.”

18

“My confidence has 
grown and I feel 
that my life is 
changing for the 
better.”

Comments and Feedback

P
age 24



Annex A: List of Swansea Local Area Co-ordination Areas

19

P
age 25



Annex B: Swansea LAC leaflet

20

P
age 26



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form – Appendix B 
 

1 
 

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing this form.  
 

Which service area and directorate are you from? 
Service Area: Tackling Poverty Service 
Directorate: Adult Social Services 
 
Q1 (a) What are you screening for relevance? 
 
 

 New and revised policies, practices or procedures  
      Service review, re-organisation or service changes/reductions, which affect the wider community, service 

 users and/or staff  
     Efficiency or saving proposals 
     Setting budget allocations for new financial year and strategic financial planning 
    New project proposals affecting staff, communities or accessibility to the built environment, e.g., new 

 construction work or adaptations to existing buildings, moving to on-line services, changing location 
 Large Scale Public Events 
 Local implementation of National Strategy/Plans/Legislation 
 Strategic directive and intent, including those developed at Regional Partnership Boards and Public Services 

 Board, which impact on a public bodies functions 
 Medium to long term plans (for example, corporate plans, development plans, service delivery and 

 improvement plans) 
 Setting objectives (for example, well-being objectives, equality objectives, Welsh language  strategy) 
 Major procurement and commissioning decisions 
 Decisions that affect the ability (including external partners) to offer Welsh  language opportunities and 

 services 
 
(b) Please name and fully describe initiative here:  
 
This is an IIA Screening for the Draft Best Practice Guide to Corporate Delivery Committee 
regarding the development of Swansea Council’s best practice guidance document relating to 
Local Area Coordination in Swansea. The report is to inform the CDC of the progress made to 
date and planned next steps. 
 

 
 

Q2 What is the potential impact on the following: the impacts below could be positive 
(+) or negative (-)  

        High Impact Medium Impact Low Impact Needs further  
     investigation 
     +    -     +    -               +    -    
Children/young people (0-18)          
OIder people (50+)         
Any other age group           
Future Generations (yet to be born)          
Disability          
Race (including refugees)          
Asylum seekers          
Gypsies & travellers          
Religion or (non-)belief         
Sex         
Sexual Orientation         
Gender reassignment          
Welsh Language         
Poverty/social exclusion         
Carers (inc. young carers)         
Community cohesion         
Marriage & civil partnership         
Pregnancy and maternity         Page 27



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form – Appendix B 
 

2 
 

 
 
Q3 What involvement has taken place/will you undertake e.g. 

engagement/consultation/co-productive approaches?   
 Please provide details below – either of your activities or your reasons for not 

undertaking involvement 
 
N/A at this stage.   
 
At the time of writing, the Local Area Coordination Leadership Group is established as a multi-
agency strategic group overseeing the implementation of Local Area Coordination in Swansea, 
connecting key partners with the service. This group will provide additional direction on the 
development of best practice guidelines for Local Area Coordination in Swansea.  
 
Engagement, coproduction and consultation will be critical to the process of developing this 
guide.  
 
Q4 Have you considered the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 in the 
 development of this initiative:   
 

a) Overall does the initiative support our Corporate Plan’s Well-being Objectives when considered 
together?  
 Yes                  No          
 

b) Does the initiative consider maximising contribution to each of the seven national well-being goals?  
 Yes                  No          
 

c) Does the initiative apply each of the five ways of working? 
 Yes                  No          
 

d) Does the initiative meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs?  
 Yes                  No          
 

 
Q5 What is the potential risk of the initiative? (Consider the following impacts – equality, 

socio-economic, environmental, cultural, legal, financial, political, media, public 
perception etc…)  

 

 High risk  Medium risk Low risk 
                         
 
 

Q6 Will this initiative have an impact (however minor) on any other Council service?  
 

  Yes        No  If yes, please provide details below  
 

 
Q7  What is the cumulative impact of this proposal on people and/or communities 
when considering all the impacts identified within the screening and any other key 
decisions affecting similar groups/ service users made by the organisation?   
(You may need to discuss this with your Service Head or Cabinet Member to consider more widely if this 
proposal will affect certain groups/ communities more adversely because of other decisions the 
organisation is making. For example, financial impact/poverty, withdrawal of multiple services and 
whether this is disadvantaging the same groups, e.g., disabled people, older people, single parents (who 
are mainly women), etc.)   
 Page 28



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form – Appendix B 
 

3 
 

N/A at this stage. 
 
Outcome of Screening 

 
Q8 Please describe the outcome of your screening below: 

 Summary of impacts identified and mitigation needed (Q2) 
 Summary of involvement (Q3) 
 WFG considerations (Q4) 
 Any risks identified (Q5) 
 Cumulative impact (Q7) 

 
 
This is an IIA Screening for the Report to Corporate Delivery Committee to consider Swansea 
Council’s draft best practice guidance document relating to Local Area Coordination in 
Swansea. 
 
The report is to inform the CDC of the progress made to date and planned next steps. 
 
The report identified no implications with the IIA. 
 
 
  (NB: This summary paragraph should be used in the relevant section of corporate report)  
   

 Full IIA to be completed  
 

 Do not complete IIA – please ensure you have provided the relevant information above to support this 
 outcome 

    
 

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before 
obtaining approval from your Head of Service.  Head of Service approval is only required via 
email. 
Screening completed by: 
Name: Lee Cambule 
Job title: Tackling Poverty Service Manager 
Date: 12/01/2023 

 
Approval by Head of Service: 
Name: Amy Hawkins 
Position: Head of Adult Social Services and Tackling Poverty 
Date: 12/01/23 

 
Please return the completed form to accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk 

Page 29



 
 

Report of the Chair 
 

Safeguarding People & Tackling Poverty Corporate Delivery Committee –  
23 January 2023 

 

Work Plan 2022-2023 
 

Date of meeting Agenda items and Format 

27 June 2022  Annual Review of People PDC Work Programme 21-22 

 Annual Review of Tackling Poverty PDC Work 
Programme 21-22 

25 July 2022  Work Programme 2022-2023 

26 September 
2022 

 Creating a Workforce to deliver more Care Service 
directly 

 Swansea Council Volunteering Strategy Development 

 Corporate Debt Policy Update 

24 October 2022  A new Local Area Coordination Best Practice Policy / 
Guide including Recruitment 

28 November 2022  Swansea Council Volunteering Strategy Development 
 

19 December 2022  CANCELLED 

23 January 2023  A new Local Area Coordination Best Practice Policy / 
Guide including Recruitment 

27 February 2023  Swansea Council Volunteering Strategy 

 Corporate Debt Policy 

 Creating a Workforce to Deliver More Care Services 
directly (Support and development of a workforce and 
well-being Strategy and plan for the Directorate) 

27 March 2023   

24 April 2023   

 
Future Items: 

 Creating a Workforce to Deliver More Care Services directly: 
a. Short term - Support and development of a workforce and well-being 

Strategy and plan for the Directorate;   
b. Medium Term (February / March) - Options for the Council to take forward 

the rebalancing agenda in Adult Services; 
c. Long Term (New Financial Year) - How the council will support the Welsh 

Government to eliminate the profit agenda in Children’s Services. 
 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion:
	4 Adroddiad ar Ddatblygu Canllaw Arfer Gorau Cydlynu Ardaloedd Lleol.
	Appendix A - Best Practice Guide Draft watermarked
	Appendix B - IIA Screening Form LAC Best Practice Guide

	5 Cynllun Gwaith 2022-2023.

